
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR  LONDON N. BREED 
SAN FRANCISCO  MAYOR  

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 

TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 
 

  
 
 
August 12, 2021 
 
The Honorable Samuel K. Feng 
Presiding Judge, Superior Court of California, County of San Francisco 
400 McAllister Street, Room 008 
San Francisco, CA 94102-4512 
 
Dear Judge Feng, 
 
In accordance with Penal Code 933 and 933.05, the following is in response to the 2020-2021  
Civil Grand Jury Report, Continuity Report. We would like to thank the members of the  
2020-2021 Civil Grand Jury for their thorough review in prior year responses to Civil Grand Jury 
findings and recommendations to ensure the responses follow statutory requirements. Also, we 
commend the Office of the Controller for their annual report informing the City officials and the 
public on updates to outstanding recommendations and collecting updated responses from City 
agencies. 
 
During the annual Civil Grand Jury response process, the Mayor’s Office coordinates with executive 
departments to respond to findings and recommendations to ensure required responses meet 
California Penal Code Section 933.05. The Mayor’s Office evaluates the feasibility of implementing 
recommendations outlined in the reports with executive departments and provides summary action, 
timeframe, and scope of analysis in our responses if recommendations have been implemented or 
require further analysis. In addition, the Mayor’s Office reviews all executive departments’ responses 
to findings and recommendations to ensure the City’s response is consistent and addresses the intent 
of the findings and recommendations. In order to be effective, we acknowledge that responses to 
recommendations should be annually updated until they have reached a final status, and City 
agencies will continue to provide a timeframe in responses, comply with statutory requirements, and 
provide updates to outstanding recommendations.   
 
A detailed response from the Mayor’s Office is attached.  
 
Thank you again for the opportunity to comment on this Civil Grand Jury report.  
 
Sincerely, 

 

  

London N. Breed 
Mayor 

  

 



 2020-21 CIVIL GRAND JURY FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND RESPONSES TO FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Report Title

[Publication Date]
F#

Finding

(text may be duplicated due to 

spanning and multiple respondent 

effects)

Respondent 

Assigned by CGJ

[Response Due 

Date]

Finding Response 

(Agree/ Disagree)
Finding Response Text

Continuity Report

[June 15, 2021]

F1 Eleven percent of the required 

responses over the past three years 

were not compliant with California 

Penal Code Section 933.05 because 

they did not include a timeframe for 

implementation.

Mayor

[August 14, 2021]

Disagree partially The Mayor’s Office coordinates with executive departments to 

ensure that responses comply with statutory requirements. In some 

instances, responses over the past three years did not include a 

clearly articulated timeline. In other instances, the timeline was 

implied based on the fact that the department or agency said the 

recommendation will be implemented, and the recommendation 

included a clear timeline. Lastly, in other cases, the 

recommendation would have budget or legislative requirement 

that prevent a clear timeline from being articulated.  

Continuity Report

[June 15, 2021]

F2 In some cases where more than one 

agency is required to respond to a 

finding and recommendation, the 

responses were conflicting.

Mayor

[August 14, 2021]

Disagree partially The Mayor’s Office coordinates with executive departments to 

ensure that responses as a City are consistent and comply with 

statutory requirements. Executive departments are departments 

that report to the Mayor. Commissions are oversight bodies and do 

not report directly to the Mayor; therefore, as independent bodies 

their responses may differ. The Mayor’s Office and executive 

departments' responses seek to be consistent and not conflicting, 

but may conflict with the commission’s response.

Continuity Report

[June 15, 2021]

F3 The Office of the Controller's annual 

report on the status of responses to 

previous year's Civil Grand Jury 

reports is extremely helpful.

Mayor

[August 14, 2021]

Agree
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 2020-21 CIVIL GRAND JURY FINDINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS, AND RESPONSES TO FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Report Title

[Publication Date]

R#

[for F#]

Recommendation

(text may be duplicated due to 

spanning and multiple respondent 

effects)

Respondent 

Assigned by CGJ

[Response Due 

Date]

Recommendation 

Response

(Implementation)

Recommendation Response Text

Continuity Report

[June 15, 2021]

R1

[for F1]

Beginning with the required 

responses to the 2020-21 Civil Grand 

Jury recommendations, the Board of 

Supervisors and the Mayor should 

direct responding agencies to include 

timeframes for implementation or 

completion of further analysis as 

required by California Penal Code 

Section 933.05(b).

Mayor

[August 14, 2021]

Has been 

implemented

The Mayor’s Office coordinates with executive departments to 

respond to Civil Grand Jury findings and recommendations 

annually. The Mayor's Office works with executive departments to 

ensure the City’s response is consistent and complies with 

California Penal Code Section 933.05(b) statutory requirements, 

which includes providing a timeframe for implementation or 

completion or an explanation of why a recommended timeframe is 

unattainable.

Continuity Report

[June 15, 2021]

R2

[for F2]

Beginning with the required 

responses to the 2020-21 Civil Grand 

Jury recommendations, the Board of 

Supervisors and the Mayor should 

direct responding agencies to 

coordinate their responses to the 

same recommendation to ensure 

they do not conflict.

Mayor

[August 14, 2021]

Has been 

implemented

During the annual Civil Grand Jury response process, the Mayor's 

Office coordinates with executive departments on responses to 

findings and recommendations to ensure the City's response is 

consistent, complies with statutory requirements, and addresses 

the intent of the findings and recommendations. 

Continuity Report

[June 15, 2021]

Not applicable
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